
 

 
 

Dear Councillor,  

 

Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee - 
Tuesday, 22nd June 2021 
 

The next meeting of the Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee to be 

held in the Town Hall, Chorley on Tuesday, 22nd June 2021 at 6.30 pm.  Entrance to the Town 

Hall during the evening can be gained from the doors on St Thomas’s Road, opposite the Police 

Station.   

 

The agenda and accompanying reports for consideration at the meeting are enclosed.  

 

The agenda papers are being sent to both appointed and substitute Members.  Any appointed 

Member who cannot attend on Tuesday, 22 June 2021 is asked to first contact their substitute to 

see if he or she can attend instead.  Then please contact Nina Neisser either by telephone or email 

at the address below to give their apology with an indication of whether the substitute Member will 

attend.  

 
Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gary Hall  

Chief Executive of Chorley and South Ribble Councils  
 
Nina Neisser 
Democratic and Member Services Officer  
E-mail: nina.neisser@chorley.gov.uk 
Tel: (01257) 515140 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Central Lancashire Strategic Planning 
Joint Advisory Committee 

 
 

Agenda 
 

1 Appointment of Chair for the Meeting   
 
2 Welcome by Chair and Introductions   
 
3 Apologies for absence   
 
4 Minutes of meeting Monday, 25 January 2021 of Central Lancashire Strategic 

Planning Joint Advisory Committee  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
5 Declarations of Interest   
 
 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest in 

respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain 
in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In 
either case you must not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter. 
 

6 Local Plan Update  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
 Report of the Central Lancashire Local Plan Co-ordinator (enclosed). 

 
7 Planning Reform Update  (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Director of Planning and Development (to follow). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 Exclusion of Press and Public   
 
 To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following items of  

business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972.  
 
By Virtue of Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
Condition:  
Information is not exempt if it is required to be registered under- The Companies 
Act 1985  
The Friendly Societies Act 1974 The Friendly Societies Act 1992  
The Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978  
The Building Societies Act 1986 (recorded in the public file of any building society, 
within the meaning of the Act)  
The Charities Act 1993  
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the case, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.  
 
Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which the local 
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to Regulation 3 of 
the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992(a).  
 

9 Land Availability Study Methodology and Approach   
 
 Land Use Consultants will deliver a presentation at the meeting. 

 
10 Dates of Future Meetings   
 
 To note that next meeting of the Joint Advisory Committee is to be held at South 

Ribble on Tuesday, 14 September at 6:30pm.  
 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Monday, 25 January 2021 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Minutes of Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory 
Committee 

 
Meeting date Monday, 25 January 2021 

 
Members present:  Councillors Bill Evans, Caleb Tomlinson, Malcolm 

Donoghue, Alistair Bradley, Martin Boardman, Alistair 
Morwood, Peter Moss, Sue Whittam and Michael Green 

 
Officers:  Jonathan Noad (South Ribble Borough Council), Steven 

Brown (South Ribble Borough Council), Carolyn Williams 
(Central Lancashire Local Plan Co-ordinator), Tom 
Wiggans (Central Lancashire Planning Policy Officer), Zoe 
Whiteside (Chorley Council), Alison Marland (Chorley 
Council), Chris Blackburn (Preston City Council), Chris 
Hayward (Preston City Council), Marcus Hudson 
(Lancashire County Council) and Charlotte Lynch 
(Democratic and Member Services Officer) 

 
114 Appointment of Chair for the Meeting 

 
RESOLVED: (Unanimously)  
 
That Councillor Bill Evans be appointed as Chair for the meeting. 
 

115 Welcome by Chair and Introductions 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained that, due to current 
government guidance surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting was being 
held virtually and livestreamed to YouTube during open session. 
 

116 Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors John Potter and Javid Iqbal and 
County Councillors Keith Iddon, Jim Marsh and Barrie Yates. 
 

117 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 

118 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimously)  
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Tuesday, 10 November 2020, be 
approved as a correct record. 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 4



Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Monday, 25 January 2021 

 
119 Issues and Options Outcome Findings 

 
The Central Lancashire Local Plan Co-ordinator, Carolyn Williams, presented a report 
which detailed the outcome findings of the Local Plan Issues and Options consultation 
which was undertaken between November 2019 and February 2020.  
 
Members were informed that 1616 responses had been received from residents, 
housing developers, parish councils and community groups across Central 
Lancashire.  
 
Responses to the consultation focused on the need for economic development in the 
area; more employment sites; fair distribution of housing across the area; a need for 
specialist housing; protection of the character of rural areas; and a need for additional 
infrastructure provisions. 
  
Town and city centres and areas close to planned or existing transport links and 
employment zones were suggested as potential development sites by respondents.  
 
A need to retain graduates from local universities such as UCLAN and to improve 
apprenticeship opportunities in Central Lancashire was also recognised in the 
consultation.  
 
Support was expressed for sustainable transport options such as park-and-ride 
facilities, on-street electric vehicle charging and pedestrian-only zones in town and city 
centres.  
 
There was also extensive support among respondents for Chorley and South Ribble 
A&E to be supported by local health hubs, which was acknowledged as important due 
to population increase. 
  
Members were pleased to note that 593 responses to the Youth Questionnaire had 
been received.  
 
In response to a query regarding the potential impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on 
the responses to the consultation, members were informed that there may be 
challenges in improving town centres and the retail sector. There may also be a need 
to assess housing and employment land studies, due to changes in working patterns 
and arrangements.  
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimously)  
 
That  
 

1. the Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee endorses 
the publication of the Outcomes Reports;  

 
2. stakeholders be notified that the outcomes reports have been published on the 

Central Lancashire Local Plan Website; and  
 

3. schools and colleges be written to thank them for responding to the youth 
questionnaire and invited to continue to engage with us going forward.  

 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 4



Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Monday, 25 January 2021 

120 Local Plan Update 
 
The Central Lancashire Local Plan Co-ordinator, Carolyn Williams, presented an 
update on the progress of the Local Plan review.  
 
Work on draft policies was ongoing and was expected to be presented to the Local 
Plan working groups in spring 2021.  
 
All initial site assessments had been completed with detailed assessments and site 
visits now underway to ascertain suitability for inclusion in the Local Plan.  
 
Other updates were provided on the progress of the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
(SFRA), which was anticipated to be completed by the end of January 2021; a 
Housing Needs Study commissioned by Chorley and Preston City Councils; a Climate 
Change study for the whole of Lancashire; and the consultation on the Local 
Development Scheme.  
 
Members welcomed the ongoing work on the Local Plan and the assurance that 
officers remained confident in meeting the set deadline for the review. A further update 
would be provided at the next meeting.  
 
The report was noted. 
 

121 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimously)  
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

122 Planning Matters 
 
Officers from each authority’s Planning Policy team provided an update on planning 
matters for each of their areas.  
 
Issues discussed included housing need figures; applications to develop on 
safeguarded land; ongoing and upcoming public inquiries; and progress on major 
development sites. 
 

123 Any other business 
 
There was no further business to discuss. 
 

124 Dates and venue of next meeting 
 
The next meeting of the Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory 
Committee will be held on Tuesday, 16 March 2021 from 6:30pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 4



Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Monday, 25 January 2021 

 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Central Lancashire Planning 
Local Plan Coordinator 

Central Lancashire Strategic Planning 
Joint Advisory Committee 

22.06.2021 

 

Central Lancashire Local Plan Update 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 
1. To note the contents of this report. 
 

Executive Summary of Report 
 
2. This report provides an update on the progress of the development of the Central Lancashire 

Local Plan.  

 
Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 

3. None, for information only. 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
4. None. 

 
Local Development Scheme Update 

 

1. We are currently in the process of reviewing and updating the Local Development Scheme. 
The next Milestone for the Local Plan is the consultation on the Preferred Options Document. 
This is currently timetabled for consultation commencing June 2021, however delays in 
development of key aspects of the evidence base have meant this date was not achievable.  

 

2. As previously noted, we felt it pertinent to wait for completion of work being undertaken at the 
County level to inform the Greater Lancashire Plan (GLP). This work has the potential to  
directly impact the Local Plan, particularly the work looking at the economic aspirations of 
Lancashire and the areas which will  be the focus of those growth aspirations, and any 
decision from that will need to be implemented through the Local Plan.   

 

3. Work to support the GLP also includes wider issues of the environment, including a carbon 
assessment of Lancashire. The findings of this work will help inform the development of 
polices and actions needed through planning to help deliver on the 2030 target for carbon 
neutrality and will provide the baseline position for monitoring delivery of the local plan. 

 
4. Further information on changes to the process of preparing Local plans as proposed under 

the Planning White Paper have still not come forward, and uncertainty on this has impacted 
on work to date. However the Queens Speech did provide an indication that the planning 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 6



reforms are expected to start to come forward this year, although these will take time to 
implement and LPA’s are encouraged to continue to prepare plans under the current system. 

 

5. All the above have in part led to changes being required into the current LDS, resulting a 
need to revise the current key milestones for the Local Plan process.  However, with the 
Government deadline for delivering Local Plans by 2023 still in place, we will do what we can 
to seek delivery by that time. We are currently working on a revised plan for delivery, with an 
aim for consultation on a Preferred Options document towards the end of 2021. 

 

Planning Reforms and the Local Plan 
 

6. As noted above, the Queens speech indicated that changes to the planning system will start 
to come forward this year, however no timeframe for when any new system may be in place 
have been suggested to dat. As such we are committed to delivering the current Local Plan 
under the existing system to enable all three councils to have an up to date Local plan  in 
place and to ensure we meet the housing requirements for Central Lancashire.  

 

7. The main changes proposed through the reforms were summarised in the Queens speech, 
noting the need to transform the current system to a more efficient digital and map-based 
service, with simpler frameworks for assessing infrastructure needs and environment impacts.  

 
8. The new system will aim to speed up the preparation of plans, presenting information in a way 

that is easier to use and provides certainty to both communities and developers on what is 
permitted where. The new system is also set to enable more meaningful engagement, 
increasing average response rates on Local Plans from 3% of the local population and for 
planning applications from an average position of 1 %. 

 

9. One of the key changes proposed through the White Paper for local plans was the 
introduction of three categories of land, Growth, Renewal and Protection, under which all 
development must be classed.  To ensure the Local plan is compatible with any new system 
developed on adoption, we are suggesting that work on sites should be undertaken with the 
proposed system of Growth, Renewal and Protection areas in mind. This will mean that work 
on identifying land for future development across Central Lancashire and the overall spatial 
strategy for Central Lancashire should link to these proposals, indicating the extent of 
coverage of each category across Central Lancashire along with the type, scale and design of 
development we expect to take place within them.  

 
10. By doing this we hope to ensure the work on the plan accords with future proposed planning 

reforms, enabling a simpler adaption to this regime and reducing the work required in any 
future updates needed to the plan to move to the new system.  

 

Preferred Options Development 
 

11. The Local Plan team have been progressing work on developing the Preferred Options plan.  
The focus of work to date has been on assessing the sites to identify if sufficient land is 
available to meet local needs. We are close to completion of this work, and are in the process 
of setting up meetings with County on education and transport to bring in their expertise to 
further assess these sites, and with our flood risk consultants to start to consider the need to 
undertake sequential test on any proposed sites. This is to assist in identifying any issues with 
sites early in the process to ensure they can be adequately addressed.  
 

12. Once the potential sites have been assessed, the Central Team will review the land 
requirements for Housing and Employment needs and assess whether there is sufficient land 
identified to meet this need. Should insufficient land be available we will need to revisit the 
approach set out in the SHELAA to consider other land options. On completion of this work we 

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 6



will engage with members across each Council to discuss the findings, setting out how 
proposals will assist in delivering local requirements. 
 

13.  We have reviewed and updated the Vision and Objectives, seeking to make these simpler and 
more concise and will be able to share these with members in the coming months. Work has 
also been progressing on identifying growth areas, and we are seeking to tie this in with the 
work that has been commissioned to support the Greater Lancashire Plan in identifying growth 
priorities for Lancashire.  
 

14. Work has also commenced on developing draft policies, with initial focus on design, spatial 
strategy development, infrastructure planning, greenbelt and countryside areas designations.  
Work on design is being updated to reflect the design guides published earlier this year, and to 
draw on work in areas developing draft design guides to enable us to make use of best practice 
in this area.   

 

Evidence Documents 
 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) 

 

15. The findings of the Level 1 SFRA are being used to inform work on assessing the sites, 
specifically the information on the strategic recommendations under which all sites received 
through the call for sites process have been categorised.  The following broad Strategic 
Recommendations (SR) are used: 
 

 SR A – consider withdrawal based on significant level of fluvial/tidal or surface water 
flood risk (if development cannot be directed away from areas at risk), 

 SR B – Exception Test required, 

 SR C – detailed consideration of site layout and design around flood risk, 

 SR D – development could be allocated subject to an FRA,  

 SR E – development could be allocated on flood risk grounds subject to consultation 
with the LPA / Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). 
 

16. All sites received through the call for sites process have been assessed within the SFRA Level 
1. This include sites which may not be taken forward however assessing all sites to date 
provides useful information to inform the evidence base for the Local Plan.  
 

17. Further work on flood risk is required if sites in the higher categories are being considered for 
development and we need to apply the sequential test. If sites are still considered to have merit 
to being looked at further, a sequential test will need to be carried out, and if passed then the 
Exception test will be undertaken if required on these sites.  This work would be undertaken 
through a SFRA Level 2, and JBA are lined up to look at the need for this from July 21. 
  

Housing Needs Study 

 

18. Preston and Chorley Councils have partnered to commission a Housing Needs Study, South 
Ribble having undertaken a similar study in 2019.  This study will look in more detail at 
housing needs of specific areas of Chorley and Preston and at the type of housing that is 
required.  Work is expected to be completed summer 2021. 

 

Central Lancashire Density Study 

 
19. Hive Planning have been commissioned to undertake a review of densities historically 

achieved on residential developments across Central Lancashire. This is required to inform 
our assumptions about the potential development capacity of sites being considered for 
allocation in the CLLP. 

 

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 6



20. The purpose of this instruction is to provide an evidence base on which to inform and support 
assumptions about the capacity of sites proposed to be allocated for residential development 
through the CLLP. This will be achieved by using data gathered around housing densities of 
sites which have previously been developed or are under construction, wherever possible. 

 

21. It is intended that the output from this commission will be used to inform the capacity 
assumptions on future residential allocations across Central Lancashire and will inform work 
on capacity assumptions to be applied to the sites which are identified  within the Strategic 
Housing (and Economic) Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA/SHELAA). Work is expected 
to be completed on this by summer 2021. 

 

 

Central Lancashire Transport Masterplan 

 

22. Discussion are been set up to engage with LCC on undertaking initial assessment of the 
proposed sites for the Local Plan. LCC will be engaged to run a test working options to help 
inform decisions on growth options and potential allocations. This work will identify any issues 
arising from the options presented and infrastructure needs which could be associated with 
their delivery. 

 

Climate Change 

 

23. The County work on the environment and climate change is in progress and due for initial 
reporting this summer. This work will provide a carbon assessment of Lancashire, which will 
provide evidence on achieving the goal of being net carbon zero. This work will look at a 
range of options to delivering net zero and identify those likely to be most effective in 
achieving this goal.  

 

24. Work at a local level is continuing alongside this project and we will look to undertake further 
research as necessary to help inform how the Local Plan can effectively address the issue of 
climate change.  We are also continuing to work with planning colleagues from across 
Lancashire on climate change and sharing best practice on how to address this across all 
areas of planning, recognising that it is an above local issue and one where we need to work 
in partnership with one another to deliver our combined goal. 

 
25. In addition to the Local Plan work, each of the three councils have their local climate change 

obligations which the aim of supporting the Councils in meeting their declarations on the 
climate emergency by becoming carbon neutral by 2030. The Councils are actively looking at 
ways to support their communities and businesses in working towards carbon neutrality,  as 
well as identifying steps the Council’s themselves can take to reduce carbon emissions.  This 
work is expected to identify linkages with planning and mechanisms for change which can be 
delivered through the Local Plan. 

 

Local Plan Viability 
 

26. We are currently in the process of procuring support for suitably qualified consultants to 
undertake work on assessing viability of the Local Plan.  Consultants will be appointed to 
undertake work on plan viability and Community Infrastructure Levy review.  This is a jointly 
commissioned piece of work and run concurrently with the Local Plan Timetable.  

 

Integrated Assessment (IA )And Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA) 

 

27. We recently tendered for consultants to undertake work on the IA and HRA for the Local 
plan. This work will run alongside the plan up to the point of adoption. We are currently 
appraising the responses received with a view to appointing consultants to start in June.   

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 6



 
Duty to Cooperate  
 
28. We continue to engage with organisations and councils on the development of the local plan, 

with meetings set up regularly with key partners such as LCC. 

 

29.  A number of requests have also been received from neighbouring authorities in regard to the 
development of their plans and delivery of housing and employment needs within their areas.  
As any discussions will affect all three partners to the Local Plan, it has been agreed that all 
responses to the Duty to Cooperate requests will be prepared with agreement from all 3 
Councils. 

 

 

 

Contact for Further Information: 
 
Carolyn Williams 01257 515151 Central Lancashire Local Plan Team 
 

 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of meeting Monday, 25 January 2021 of Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee
	6 Local Plan Update

